REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
November 3, 2025
PAGE 105

The Jasper County Commissioners met this date at 8:30 A.M. C.S.T at 910 S Sparling Ave.,
Rensselaer, Indiana with the following members present: Rein Bontreger, Craig Standish and Ryan
Hilton. Also present were Auditor, Diana Boersma, Deputy Auditor, Cynthia Slaughter and Eric
Beaver, the Attorney that represents the Commissioners. Those present stood and recited the
Pledge of Allegiance led by Mr. Bontreger. There was a brief moment of silence following the
Pledge.

MINUTES: Mr. Standish made a motion to approve the minutes from October 6, 2025 as
presented. Mr. Hilton seconded and the motion carried.

PAYROLL CLAIMS: Mr. Hilton made a motion to approve the payroll claims with checks dated
October 15% and October 30%, 2025. Mr. Standish seconded, and the motion carried.

CLAIMS: Mr. Standish made a motion to approve the claims, as presented. Mr. Hilton seconded
and the motion carried.

SHERIFF WILLIAMSON: Sheriff Williamson stated they have 2 part-time dispatchers and they
would like to fill those slots. He stated one is their clerk that they use. He stated they try to get
high school kids in there and then train them to be a dispatcher. He stated the other one is a part
time spot that they moved a part timer to a full-time position. Mr. Standish made a motion to fill
the position as presented. Mr. Hilton seconded and the motion carried.

Mr. Bontreger stated he wanted to give some kudos to the Sheriff. He stated he and Mr. Hilton
attended the Banquet for the House of Grace Saturday night. He stated this is a recovery program
for women and it is operating in Jasper County. He stated that just from some of the Sheriff’s
initiative, it has helped to get that program started and he wanted to thank the Sheriff for the
initiative to try to help our citizens to get off the addiction merry-go-round, and it has changed
lives and they are seeming some results. He stated they wanted to pay the Sheriff a little honor for
his dedication there. Sheriff Williamson stated getting people transitioned into the community after
they have been down that road of addiction is so important. He stated there is a huge need for it
and mental illness goes along with it. He stated hopefully, they will continue on and get bigger and
it will help people in the community and it already has. He stated he thinks they said 60 or 70 have
been through the house. He stated it is a tough time for all this, addiction, it’s tough to get these
folks up onto a right and better path. He stated they have dealt with it this moming in the jail
already with an individual that is not cooperating and it is just unfortunate to see.

CORONER BOERSMA: Mr. Bontreger stated the coroner is out on location and will not be at the
meeting. Mr. Standish stated the building committee was able to have a meeting last week and sit
down with an engineering firm to give them a quote on doing engineered drawings for the building.
He stated it came in late Friday and he does not have it with him. He stated they are still under
deliberation on exact size and whatnot and that is part of what the coroner is working on today.

COMMUNITY CORRECTIONS-KAITLYN BOOMSMA: Mr. Bontreger stated Jasper County
Community Corrections Director Caitlin Boomsma is requesting to replace a fulltime correctional
officer who moved from a CO position to an administrative assistant. He stated Jasper County
Community Corrections currently only has one vacant fulltime CO position and that is actually an
improvement from where it has been. He stated she thanked them for their attention on this matter.
Mr. Hilton made a motion to approve her to seek to replace this vacant position. Mr. Standish
seconded and the motion carried.

AUDITOR BOERSMA: Ms. Boersma stated she had a request from Cynthia to carry one day of
comp time over and use it right away in January. Mr. Hilton made a motion to approve the
carryover of one day. Mr. Standish seconded and the motion carried.

EXTENSION OFFICE: Mr. Bontreger stated Carmen Fortney presented the contract with Purdue.
Mr. Beaver stated this is something that is the same from one year to the next, maybe the dollar
amount changes. He stated it is the agreement between the county and Purdue for funding of the




REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

November 3, 2025
PAGE 106

EXTENSION OFFICE CONT’D: Purdue Extension officer that works with the county located out
at the Surveyor’s office. Mr. Bontreger stated they recently had a good discussion with the
Extension personnel and their District Director to get a clear definition of how Purdue is to interact
with county employees out at the Extension office. He stated they are awaiting what that outline
is and have a follow-up meeting with them. Mr. Beaver stated he did not have any comments, he
approves, and he has never had a problem with the wording. Mr. Bontreger stated one thing that
Mr. Standish did bring up when they met with them was to have their representative at the Plan
Commission meetings. Mr. Standish stated that is part of the contract that the environmental person
be there. He stated he realizes because they live outside the county in this case, that they can’t vote
and there is a proxy that is present. He stated they discussed in outline that point, that her opinion
should be the proxy vote next case so they do need to get ber there. Mr. Hilton made a motion to
approve the contract as presented. Mr. Standish seconded and the motion carried.

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT MARY SCHEURICH: Ms. Scheurich stated she has 2
rezones. She stated one is Richard Tillama, he has 9.341 acres in Wheatfield Township, and they
would like to rezone it for the purpose of subdividing it into 2 lots. She stated she believes it is one
for them and one for their son. She stated it is in a floodplain and they are aware that they will
need to do the elevation certs and everything to be able to build, get their septic permits etc. She
stated the Plan Commission did recommend that it be rezoned. Mr. Bontreger asked Mr. Hilton if
there was anything from his perspective as the planning and development member. Mr. Hilton
stated it was all very cut and dry when they had the meeting. Mr. Hilton made a motion to approve
the rezone as presented. Mr. Standish seconded and the motion carried.

Ms. Scheurich stated the second one is Richard Buiter. She stated they have an existing farmhouse
on she believes 35 acres. She stated they want to be able to sell that off. She stated it is in an Al
district which would require the 10 acres. She stated with 2.135 acres it was unanimously approved
just to be able to sell that farmhouse off. Mr. Standish made a motion to approve as presented. Mr.
Hilton seconded and the motion carried.

Ms. Scheurich stated she had an amendment that made it to the agenda however, it was something
that the Planning Commission did not need to address, it would be addressed by the
Commissioners if they so choose. She stated, she does not know if Mr. Beaver wanted to take the
lead on that or if it is something they need to discuss at a different time. Mr. Beaver stated they
can discuss it. Ms. Scheurich stated this was in regards to fees for industrial warehouse bulk
storage. She stated they had a cap of $2,000 and the Plan Commission recommended to remove
the max because they do have some projects that well exceed that and they do take a lot of time.
Mr. Beaver stated this is an amendment to the building code, not the Unified Development
Ordinance. He stated this is a request to amend the permit and inspection fees in the building code
for industrial warehouse and bulk storage. He stated it is currently $150 flat plus 0.10% of the total
construction cost with a $2,000 maximum and the amendment is to remove the $2,000 maximum.
He stated he did review this under the Home Rule Act and there is always concern about whether
there is an excessive amount of a local permit or fee and tying this with the cost of construction as
opposed to the cost of revenue or something does provide for a rough approximation of what the
cost would be because it would cost the county more to inspect a $10 million structure than it
would a half a million dollar structure. He stated he thinks the 0.1% is a rough approximation he
thinks as well of those costs. He stated with that framework in mind he thinks that is reasonable
within the confines of the Home Rule statute. Mr. Standish made a motion to strike the $2,000
max on the $150 plus 0.1% of a total construction cost for large industrial warehouse and bulk
storage projects. Ms. Scheurich stated they also have a max and a cap of $3,000 on commercial
and that is another one that they exceed on a regular basis. Mr. Beaver stated that can be put on
the next agenda. Mr. Hilton seconded and the motion carried.

MAIN STREET RENSSELAER STACE PICKERING: Mr. Pickering stated on behalf of Main
Street he is here to ask for permission to do the laser light show for Christmas on the Courthouse.
He stated last vear was the first year they ever did it. He provided pictures from the event. He




REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
November 3, 2025
PAGE 107

MAIN STREET RENSSELAFER STACE PICKERING CONT’D: stated you can see from the
pictures the issue they had is the projector doesn’t cover the entire front side of the courthouse and
they had to back it up pretty far from the courthouse in order to try to cover the whole thing. He
stated they talked to the company, talked to their engineers and their recommendation is to get a
second projector, a more powerful and upgraded projector and put two projectors out there to cover
the entire front side of the courthouse. He stated at the same time they can move those projectors
closer to the building which will give them the higher definition they are looking for. He stated he
is asking for permission to do the show and put a second projector out. He stated little wooden
boxes would be sitting on the grass area flanking the two sides of the sidewalk that are coming up
to the door. He stated they do put extension cords that go to them inside rubber guards to go across
the sidewalk. He stated the second part of that is they would like to put a projector screen in front
of the doors. He stated what they can do, as you can see from the pictures, the software allows
them to map out the building however they want, they can literally put one video in one window
1f they wanted to. He stated what they want to do is, in front of the big doors, put a projector screen
and on that screen will be movies. He stated and then around the screen will be different holiday
themes that coincide with the movie and that will allow them to bring in sound and really visualize
and get a 3D effect on the whole scene. He stated the permission is to do the show, add the second
projector, and be able to put a screen in front of the two doors. Mr. Standish asked if there would
be any obstruction to that being an emergency exit with the screen or is it going to be far enough
away from the door. Mr. Pickering stated it will be 4 or 5 feet back from the doors, to be able to
get around it. Mr. Bontreger stated the other component was seeing if they can have the external
lights off. Mr. Standish stated not a problem. Mr. Pickering stated last year it did help a lot,
maintenance did shut the lampposts that are on the sidewalk off. He stated The City of Rensselaer
came in and helped. He stated the light that hangs in the front of that door, nobody could find the
switch to it and they literally unplugged the bulb. He stated that is what they would like to do again
this year, it really helps to have the courthouse as dark as possible to get these lights to show up as
well as they can. He stated they received a grant from Jasper County Tourism last month to get
another projector so pending their approval they should be good to get set up for this year. Mr.
Hilton made the motion to approve the request as presented. Mr. Standish seconded and the motion
carried.

ORBITAL ENGINEERING PROJECT MANAGER ROGELIO CASAS: Orbital Engineering
was not present at the meeting.

MERCURY FIBER: Ramona Newsome from Mercury Fiber stated she has been speaking with
Mary Eddy and they did address the Rustling Oaks subdivision. She stated the two random marker
posts have since been removed. She stated she needs to get an address on the connection/junction
box placement on the property easement so that she can effectively address that. She stated she
has a project update, they have 12 houses yet to finish and get light to over in Wheatfield and then
they will be construction complete with their project. She stated in the next week or two there will
be 9-10 of them that will come in here mob deep to do a massive QC, address any random issues
that may still arise and then they will be out of their hair. Mr. Hilton stated he would like to thank
Mona and the Mercury team for assessing and directing and taking care of the issues as they arise.
He stated her communication has been excellent, response time has been terrific, and he hopes that
echoes loudly through the other subdivisions and everybody else who had issues as well, and he
thanks her for taking care of those issues.

Mary Eddy joined the meeting via Zoom. Ms. Eddy stated she wanted to give a quick update,
thanks for letting them participate and speak their concerns. She stated Mona’s been great. She
stated Rustling Oaks is signing off on that, they have been very responsive. She stated Mona’s
quite the businesswoman taking care of things and they are very happy. She stated she has sold
her house there, she represented Rustling Oaks but she is no longer a resident there. She stated the
only last concern 1s potential damage to a sprinkler system but Mona’s agreed to give the contact
information directly to that homeowner who is a dear friend of hers and she is confident that they



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

November 3, 2025
PAGE 108

MERCURY FIBER CONT’D: will work with them is there is an issue. She stated she has moved
to a new address in Rensselaer, still in Jasper County and the only option for internet at her new
address is Mercury Fiber. She stated she has signed up as a new customer with Mercury Fiber. She
stated she has heard complaints about Mercury Fiber from the surrounding neighbors and Mona is
on top of that. She stated the last thing she has is just to ask, and it doesn’t have to be in this
meeting to consume the time, but, she realized that she is a taxpayer and this stuff happens and the
Commissioners are doing a great job, and she has a voice, and she should be participating more as
residents instead of just sitting back complaining about things. She stated she would really like to
know more about the grant stuff, because in researching her new address and seeing who has fiber
optic and how to get internet at her new address, it has been a pain. She stated REMC said yes,
they have her electricity but they are not part of the government grant with her zoning. She stated
she found out it was Mercury and was not happy because she wasn’t happy with them over the
Rustling Oaks thing but Mona fixed that. She stated she does not understand this whole grant
zoning thing. She stated Mercury Fiber is meeting competitive prices with REMC in the first two
years but plan to do a price hike beyond that in two years. She stated she will see what happens
after two years. She stated she will be happy with them for two years, hopefully, and then they
will decide where to go from there. She stated she is just intrigued at this point, as a businesswoman
and a resident of this community on how this grant stuff works, and wondered if they can point
her in the direction on how to be more involved and informed about the grants and the zonings and
not just for utilities but where her taxpayer dollars are going. Mr. Bontreger stated the underserved
areas was an initiative from the state of Indiana called the BEAD program as a way to reach
underserved areas in rural counties and companies had a chance to auction/bid these areas. He
stated REMC was one of them, Mercury and others. He stated there is really no local direction as
far as where these companies are going. He stated their main concern is to make sure they are
playing well together in the right-of-way and not doing damage as they come in as there are now
multiple runs of fiber in some cases in the same roadside areas. He stated it is an initiative to get
broadband to underserved areas within rural counties and obviously Jasper County is getting that
and he is sure there will be more to the story here over the next few years as these buildouts
continue to be deployed. Ms. Eddy stated our local businesses are closing and suffering and her
first inclination is to support REMC rather than a corporation that is coming into the community.
She stated she wants to be educated about what this process looks like and support local businesses
as much as possible and make sure that when big corporations come in they are bringing options
that are price competitive and not closing down our local businesses. She stated she knows REMC
is not going to go out of business but others have. She stated she is asking how/where does she go
to research this more and become more involved and be helpful and not a complainer. Mr.
Bontreger stated they appreciate that and zooming into local meetings is part of the way to get
informed as to what is going on. Ms. Newsome stated she would like to add, in regards to Orbital
Engineering, they have all of their maps uploaded into the Indiana 811 system, and if the
Commissioners wouldn’t mind giving her contact information to them. She stated the last thing
she wants out here is cut fiber.

COUNTY FARMGROUND LEASE AWARD: Mr. Standish stated the county and the airport
authority both own tillable acres of farmground that has been under a 3-year lease. He stated in the
past that has been done as a sealed bid. He stated this year there were some concerns about if you
are the current tenant, having the first right of refusal to the higher bidder and they did not know
how to handle that with it not being fair to the high bidder that night. He stated so they changed to
a live auction setting. He stated they met there last Friday night and had four bidders in the room
and there was a total of 303 acres being bid on. He stated they were successful in getting that rented
for 2026 and the next three years after that for the fee of $350 an acre. She stated part of the
contingencies they put in the lease this year was you had to be a Jasper County resident to bid on
it. He stated they felt that was important, if it is Jasper County ground you need to be a Jasper
County resident to farm it. He stated Hayworth Farms was the successful bidder. He stated they
are in the process as soon as they can to get accurate, tillable acreage maps but whatever that



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
November 3, 2025
PAGE 109

COUNTY FARMGROUND LEASE AWARD CONT’D: acreage comes out to be it will be at the
$350 an acre fee. Mr. Bontreger stated he thanks Mr. Beaver, who was the auctioneer and did a
great job. He stated Mr. Hilton was the crier and that worked out well.

OTHER BUSINESS

CAMERA INVOICE: Mr. Hilton stated they have an invoice for camera usage that Ed brought to
the table this morning. He stated that is for the camera usage that they were using for traffic control
over at the Kniman Solar Farm for trucks that were not using the appropriate truck route. Ed Cain
stated those were Cory’s cameras. He stated they set them up to get the violations and he is looking
to be reimbursed for the fees of it. Mr. Bontreger stated it was $150 and he thinks they could pay
that from the fines they collected from that. Mr. Hilton made a motion to approve the
reimbursement for the use of the cameras. Mr. Standish seconded and the motion carried.

EXPANSION PROJECT IN PARTNERSHIP WITH THE CITY OF RENSSELAER: Mr.
Bontreger stated they need to pay the final invoice for the completion of the utility expansion
project in cooperation and partnership with the city. He stated they are paying that out of EDA
money and the total is $944,018.68. He stated he has heard good comments about potential
development in that area that has been blighted and underserved, so he is excited to see what this
1s going to help foster as far as new growth around that. Mr. Standish made a motion to approve
the invoice. Mr. Hilton seconded and the motion carried. Mr. Bontreger stated this is where the
Grandmas was at, they bored underneath I-65, so where Grandma’s and Burger King is, and Trail
Tree, they are going to have sewer and water there.

COUNTY ENGINEER JACK HABERIIN: Mr. Haberlin stated he has 4 buried cable permits
from the same company as last month that have done work here before. He stated it is BMS Group,
it is for fiber optic, and is basically subdivision-type areas. He stated there is Oak Drive and
Woodgate Drive Wheatfield, Fieldstone Drive and Rustic Drive DeMotte, Fountain View Drive
DeMotte, and Primrose Trail Prairie Ridge Wheatfield. Mr. Bontreger asked you recommend, as
presented, they would all be acceptable to approve. Mr. Haberlin stated yes, he does. Mr. Hilton
made a motion to approve all the buried cable permits as presented. Mr. Standish seconded. Mr.
Standish asked if there is any end to this, it seems like its fiber, fiber, fiber, and it’s a different
company. Mr. Hilton stated if they keep pumping money into it he doesn’t know if its going to
stop. Mr. Standish stated our easements are going to get really tough to navigate for the surveyor,
county highway garage, and everybody. Mr. Haberlin stated and they are all out of state. He stated
he just saw this morning another one for 75,000 feet. He stated he thinks it’s the federal
government paying these people to come in to put in fiber optic and like the lady that just talked
said, they had REMC then they got Mercury and is someone else going to put in another one as
well. Mr. Bontreger stated 1t 1s getting crowed and at some point do these companies then start
leasing their space in their fiber optic. He stated the physical space is going to be taken pretty quick
and we don’t need somebody tearing up somebody else’s stuff when they are putting their stuff in.
Mr. Standish stated there are a lot of agricultural things that go into our right-of-way’s and he
thinks it’s a valid question. He stated he want’s everybody to have fiber or internet services and
have choices in that but 6 or 7 different ones running down the same side of the road makes it
pretty tough. Mr. Standish seconded and the motion carried.

Mr. Haberlin stated they worked on getting 3 grants, one for signage, one for marking, and one for
trails. He stated they had to re-advertise that because they didn’t have a DBE but now they have
got those responses in. He stated he is moving forward with the grants.

ATTORNEY BEAVER: Mr. Beaver stated with SolarPak / Zelestra project nearing completion
they have suggested Kimley Hom, the engineering company, to serve as a professional engineer
to come up with the decommissioning cost study, so that the decommissioning bond can be posted.
He stated this is something they can simply stipulate to, if the Commissioners are so inclined, and
they would retain and engage Kimley Home to do that in accordance with the decommissioning
agreement. Mr. Bontreger stated so the company is going to engage Kimley Hormn to come up with




REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

November 3, 2025
PAGE 110

ATTORNEY BEAVER CONT’D: the study and then present it to the Commissioners. Mr. Beaver
stated it is for the decommissioning costs and then there is a bond that is posted based on what
those costs are. Mr. Bontreger stated he believes they were part of the actual design. Mr. Hilton
made a motion to approve an oral resolution to support the engagement of Kimley Hormn to do the
decommissioning cost study. Mr. Standish seconded and the motion carried.

Mr. Beaver stated there was a mishap about a year ago with a property tax sale with a property
down in Remington where at the last minute of the redemption period, the landowner did redeem
and pay the redemption amount. He stated something was not processed correctly and the tax deed
was issued to the tax purchaser. He stated they have an agreement in place with the tax purchaser
to unwind that transaction and Brett Schwab with the Presidio down in Remington was the tax
purchaser. He stated he had retained an attorney to do this so he is asking for his costs to be
returned. He stated he is not asking for a whole lot. He stated money that would be payable is
already on hand and would be what was paid for the tax purchase, the attorney fee, title, and
property tax installments paid by Mr. Schwab with interest and the total value is $3.833.48. He
stated he believes the county already has that on hand. He stated that number came to him from
the Treasurer through SRI. He stated the extras that are being requested are $165 for lawn care,
$500 for time and effort to put a property management plan in place, and then attorney’s fees which
would be capped at $1,400 bringing that total to $2,065 roughly, of money payable to resolve it.
He stated he as a total of $5,898.48 that would be paid. He stated he would do the work on behalf
of the county to keep those fees down to draft a settlement agreement and draft the court papers
with the appropriate motion in the tax sale proceeding to undo the tax deed and also then to draft
the affidavit to correct the chain of title, subject to the auditor’s approval and prepare any
documents needed to tender the claims for payment. Mr. Bontreger asked do we have money out
of the tax sale account that can cover that or do we have to pull it from somewhere else. Ms.
Boersma stated she thinks that’s where it has got to come from. Mr. Bontreger thanked Mr. Beaver
for getting this lingering issue cleaned up and taken care of. Mr. Beaver stated the address is 100
West Virginia Street in Remington. Mr. Standish made a motion to clean this issue up, undo what
was done, and get it back to good legal standing as he presented for the cost of $5,898.48. Mr.
Hilton seconded and the motion carried.

HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT ED CAIN: Mr. Cain stated over the last few years the
Commissioners have allowed the highway department to contract an area for snow plowing out if
needed and he would like to do that again. He stated he sent out some packets for bids and has
only received one back so far. He stated he did not use anyone last year, they didn’t have any snow
last year. He stated he has two brand new guys this year and its going to be the first time they have
ever plowed. Mr. Hilton made a motion to approve the request for the snow plowing contractor.
Mr. Standish seconded and the motion carried.

Mr. Cain stated for next vear’s holiday schedule there are two days that are Fridays off that the
Highway Department is off that he would like to move to the Thursday prior. He stated the holidays
are Good Friday and the 4% of July. Mr. Bontreger stated they have historically done that in the
past. Mr. Standish made a motion to approve the adjustment of those days for the Highway
Department since those holidays land on their summer scheduled days off. Mr. Hilton seconded
and the motion carried.

Mr. Cain stated they did quite a bit of paving this year and he does not have an exact number at
this time. He stated they just completed 2 more miles down in the Carpenter area.

JASPER COUNTY COMMUNITY SERVICES SHARON COLEE: Ms. Colee stated she wanted
to thank them for a great year. She stated she will be out of the office for about 3 or 4 weeks and
can be reached at home. She stated they probably will not be back for the December meeting. She
stated they need nothing whatsoever. She stated she just came from Fase, thank you for the furnace
and everything is up and running. She stated she will probably get with Mr. Hilton and follow up




REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
November 3, 2025
PAGE 111

JASPER COUNTY COMMUNITY SERVICES SHARON COLFE CONT’D: on the snow
removal and to make sure the outside water was shut off. She stated they will continue to celebrate
50 years of commumity service over the year.

STACE PICKERING: Mr. Pickering stated he does not know if a decision has been made on the
issue brought up with the Sheriff. Mr. Standish stated that was concerning titling the Federal
Forfeiture vehicles that are purchased with that money. He stated the vehicles have to be titled
with the department name. He stated he had a conversation with the Sheriff and that money cannot
ever be mixed with county money. He stated those vehicles that are purchased with that forfeiture
money have to be traded in, they can’t be handed down throughout the county. He stated there was
an issue a few years back where there was some funding that got moved over and the federal
government came in and they had to get the money back from the County Treasurer over to there.
He stated they did talk about how that looks from a maintenance standpoint, does the maintenance
on those vehicles get done with forfeiture money or does the county budget pick them up. He stated
the county budget does pick them up as they are being used for county business. Mr. Standish
stated when the time comes if they do a vehicle transfer to another department the new Sheriff will
be fully aware of that and have to transfer title at that time. He stated the Sheriff told him it would
have to be a purchase; the county would have to purchase that from the forfeiture account if the
county wanted to keep it. Mr. Standish made a motion to title the forfeiture vehicles under the
Jasper County Sheriffs Department. Mr. Hilton seconded and the motion carried. Mr. Pickering
stated there would be no premium change. He stated they wanted to be clear and make sure that
the Sheriff was named on that policy as opposed to relying upon some language in the policy. He
stated it will say Sheriff’s Department on that policy.

COUNTY ENGINEER JACK HABERLIN: Mr. Haberlin stated he was working on area for office
space in the courthouse and he found a print for them. He stated it implies that the previous
sidewalks around the courthouse the county paid for them. The plans for the courthouse were
discussed as well as the Commissioners signatures from 1982. Mr. Hilton stated a quick backstory,
the sidewalks around the courthouse were just done. He stated the City of Rensselaer did two
sidewalks on the bricks and the county finished up the other two sides of the courthouse along the
state roads. Mr. Bontreger stated the sidewalks are 40 years old. He stated Larson Danielson did a
good job, the sidewalks look good. Mr. Standish stated just so the public knows they are still closed
for parking right now, they were painted Friday of last week but are still closed because the light
poles are to go up this week at some point.

CARPENTER WIND FARM BRANDON TOWLE: Mr. Towle stated they have 39 turbines
erected. He stated all of the cable has been pulled and they are doing splicing at the turbine towers
mostly. He stated a lot of restoration is happening especially along 1800, that’s both at the turbine
sites and also your turning radii and the temporary culvers being removed and restored. He stated
as far as the road use agreement goes, they should start having those road open and closed with
the dates on them posted. He stated the company that they are using for their maintenance of traffic
doesn’t actually own those signs and had to get them. He stated as far as road use, they really
haven’t had any incidences, they came down heavy on that last month and they got it all
straightened up. He stated they had an incident with calcium chloride. He stated Mortenson applied
their third and final application for the agreement. He stated a combination of the way it was
applied and the amount that was applied was a little heavy and with the harvest going on right now
they ended up with a bunch of calcium chloride spread all over their equipment and trucks. He
stated thanks to Mr. Standish, he had a phone number for a truck cleaning company and put them
in touch with EDP. He stated 4 out of the 5 farmers he talked to are having all their equipment
cleaned and courtesy of EDP to pay the bill for it. Mr. Bontreger stated this underscores why they
are glad they have them on site as construction compliance, they have done a great job mitigating
the issues. He stated thank you Mr. Standish for being the spearhead at getting a solution down
there for the farmers to get their equipment cleaned up. Mr. Towle stated they had a slight change
to the road use agreement. He stated now that the county has paved that 2 miles of 1800, they have




REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

November 3, 2025
PAGE 112

CARPENTER WIND FARM BRANDON TOWLE CONT’D: told them to keep their heavy
vehicles off those 2 miles. He stated they are allowing them to use 780 West. He stated they still
have some restoration east of 780, rather than hauling all the way down to 980 they shortened up
their route by 4 miles round trip. He stated it is a gravel road and they will restore anything that
gets damaged or maintain it as it goes. He stated it should be temporary over the next month or so.
Mr. Bontreger stated as long as they are aware and head that off at the pass that is great.

ORBITAL ENGINEERING PROJECT MANAGER ROGELIO CASAS: Mr. Bontreger stated it
does not appear anyone with Orbital Engineering is here and they will table that for the December
meeting.

PUBLIC COMMENT

REBECCA DEARDORF: Ms. Deardorf stated her address: 13951 North 500 East San Pierre,
46374. She stated she was here in January and asked Ed about the roads up in Kankakee Township.
She stated there had been a lot of paving that was paid by the solar company, and he said the paving
company ran out of time and there was still something to do. She asked was that taken care of this
year. Mr. Cain stated that was all the paving for them. He stated he meant stuff that they would be
doing. Ms. Deardorf stated there are either signs that say no truck traffic or no semi-traffic at 400
East, which goes through Taft and there is one at 10 and there is one at 1300 North. She stated
then on 1350 North just east of 500 East, so mile over, there are signs on that road and she does
not know if that is permanent but there are a lot of farmers with their semis that use those roads.
M. Cain stated he thinks that is something from the solar farm and he is pretty sure they are done
with those roads so he can look into taking them down. Mr. Bontreger stated that would have been
probably implied for construction traffic. Mr. Cain stated a lot of times if there is any kind of
construction on the state roads they will put up a no truck sign for semis that are using the state
road. Ms. Deardorf stated in October there was a vigil at the courthouse for that man that was shot.
She asked, is that a permit thing, is there criteria as to what type of event you have at the
courthouse. Mr. Bontreger stated people have filed permits on both sides of the political aisle to
demonstrate at the courthouse. He stated they have had a couple that were part of the No Kings
thing. Mr. Hilton stated that was a couple weeks ago. Mr. Bontreger stated there was another one
earlier in the spring. He stated this one was filed by another group that wanted to use the north side
there for that vigil. Ms. Deardorf asked so there is a permitting thing with criteria. Mr. Bontreger
stated yes through the auditor’s office and there is a copy of it. He stated Stace actually filed one
to use the courthouse for the Christmas lights. Mr. Standish stated you pick where you want to use
it and what your use is and then they approve it. Ms. Deardorf asked and then that light, when is
that. Mr. Pickering stated the Christmas lights, they try to start around early December and they
run it to New Year’s Eve. Mr. Bontreger stated it is every night. Mr. Pickering stated it is usually
from about dusk until about midnight.

MICHELLE HOFFMAN: Ms. Hoffman stated her address: 14225 North 200 West Wheatfield.
She asked if the Kniman Solar Field has tended to their mechanical lean yet. Mr. Hilton stated he
does not know if they have or not, he thinks that would be a discussion between them and the
landowners. She asked didn’t the Kniman Solar Field already submit a decommissioning plan.
Mr. Bontreger stated there was a plan but now they are determining what the final amount needs
to be for the bond to actually be in place to make sure it covers the cost. Ms. Hoffman stated she
wanted to ask the Commissioners what they were thinking when they signed the non-disclosure
agreements with NIPSCO in their capacity as an elected official. She stated how do you expect the
public to trust you when you have entered into these agreements that bar you from sharing
information with your constituents. She stated NDAs fundamentally violate a core principle of
democracy. She stated elected officials are accountable first and foremost to the voters, not to
corporations negotiating behind closed doors. She asked, would you not agree that signing those
NDAs prevents you from fully and faithfully representing the public’s best interest. She stated the
secrecy they impose only widens the power gap between large corporations and rural communities
like ours. She stated when details are hidden local governments cannot easily compare terms with




REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
November 3, 2025
PAGE 113

MICHELLE HOFFMAN CONT’D: other municipalities or counties which makes it harder to
negotiate better outcomes or push back against unfavorable terms. She stated, meanwhile,
corporations like NIPSCO have extensively experienced negotiating such agreements and they
know exactly what they can get away with. She stated she urges them to consider adopting a policy
or even an ordinance prohibiting or strictly limiting county officials from signing NDAs in their
official capacity, especially when those agreements concern information that should be public
record or discussed in open meetings. She stated she knows they understand the difference between
generally proprietary information and matters that belong in the public spear and when you sign a
blanket NDA you agree to keep everything confidential and that undermines transparency. She
stated we all know that NIPSCO is in the process of rezoning land around the Schaefer plant. She
stated they have signed NDAs with them, so the public does not know what is being discussed or
decided. She stated that lack of transparency is deeply concerning. She stated NDAs too easily
become tools for secret lobbying, shutting out the very people they were elected to represent. She
stated this is how communities end up blindsided. She stated projects move forward despite public
opposition, negotiated in secrecy in terms that don’t serve local interest. She stated you have heard
the saying ask for a slice of bread an you will get crumbs, ask for the whole loaf and you will get
slices. She stated in negotiating there are no rules and these companies are seeking our
community’s resources. She stated she is not opposed to sharing resources with responsible
companies but she takes issue when we are left in the dark about their intentions, their plans, their
impact. She stated they have seen today that they were supposed to be here for a right-of-way but
they are not here. She asked, are you going to negotiate this now behind closed doors with them
because it will fall under your NDAs. She stated that she asks they keep this in mind, once NIPSCO
completes the rezoning, will they keep that land or will they release or sell it to the highest bidder
and what is to stop them from purchasing and rezoning even more land. She stated transparency
and accountability are not optional, they are the foundation of public trust, please keep that trust
intact.

Mr. Bontreger stated he appreciates her opinion on this and this is a topic of discussion they have
had intemally. He stated yes, he did sign the NDA but it is not to negotiate secret deals behind
closed doors, 1t is to receive sensitive information on your behalf. He stated if you can’t trust him
to be able to sign that so he can find out what is going on on your behalf then who can vou trust to
do that. He stated his concern is, if they do not bring their voice to the table to plainly say their
opinions and concerns to the company, if he didn’t sign that he would not get a seat at the table to
be able to express to them across the table, look them straight in the eve, what our concerns are
concerning the county’s need for these types of projects or any kind of project. He stated it is part
of his job to have to be able to be treated with sensitive information and treated securely. He stated
one of the things that he sees as far as his opinion, why he was willing to sign it is that it ensures
that the county is not a source of misinformation and causing rumors that are not true. He stated
there is enough of that that gets out there on its own but you are not going to hear that from him.
He stated NDA does not mean he can’t tell you about it ever, it just means for a time period while
they are hearing their plans that the company can trust him and hopefully the public can trust him
to handle sensitive information in an appropriate way. He stated that is his opinion of why he was
willing to sign an NDA, so that he will have a seat at the table to say whether its water usage or
other concerns he has a chance to talk to them personally, that he is able to represent their concerns.
He stated he has talked to her, he hears her concerns, he knows them. He stated they don’t always
agree on everything on this topic amounts them but that’s his view as to why he was willing to
sign it and that is why he encouraged your county representatives to sign it because not everything
at every stage of the game can be fully disclosed. He stated they don’t fully understand what their
intentions are and when you start laying out partial plans then it causes more disinformation and
panic. He stated he is willing to sign it so he can hear what their actual plans are and then he can
push back from the county perspective. He stated that is his perspective on why he has been willing
to sign them and work through that process. Ms. Hoffman stated most of the information, they
don’t hear it form the Commissioners, they read it in the local newspapers. Mr. Bontreger stated



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
November 3, 2025
PAGE 114

MICHELLE HOFFMAN CONT’D: that when the company decides to release it then they can
either corroborate that was the truth or it wasn’t. He stated he is not going to be responsible for a
leak and some of it is proprietary. He stated he has asked the company about that, what is the need
for it. He stated they have multiple people looking to put these types of projects, whether its wind,
solar, data, whatever, he doesn’t care what it is, who are trying to steal secrets from each other as
to how to get in and make it happen. He stated he is willing to listen in a confidential setting and
let them know when he signed that paper, that they can trust him with that information and that he
is not going to just run to a news media or somebody that then gets morphed into some other
message that wasn’t the truth. He stated he is willing to sign. it so he can listen to hear what they
are wanting to do. He stated his concern, if they are not willing to have those hard conversations,
in his perspective, to demonstrate that they can handle these difficult conversations then there are
plenty of people ready and willing at the state level to just remove local zoning and permitting out
of our hands and they will cite it on their own the we will get nothing and be more in the dark then
what they are now. He stated that is his perspective and his opinion and he realizes it may not be
the popular one but that is how he views it. Ms. Hoffiman stated she does not have a problem
against holding their proprietary information it is doing blankets, why would they ask for an NDA
for things like a tile that runs through their facility, a ditch line that runs through their facility, its
all county owned. Mr. Bontreger stated because they have outside competitive eyes looking at
ways to cut the corners, if they don’t have to design it from scratch because somebody else did the
work and they got their information. Mr. Bontreger stated it was like disclosing KFC’s secret
recipe. Ms. Hoffman stated that is different and a poor analogy, that is proprietary. Mr. Standish’
stated he does not think there was an NDA over a tile or a ditch because otherwise you would not
know about it. He stated those are questions from a drainage standpoint, which, obviously, they
contacted the surveyor’s office, they had those conversations. Ms. Hoffman stated they did ask the
Surveyor’s office to sign NDAs for them. Mr. Standish stated correct, but they still had the
conversation after they didn’t so it is not something that would be underneath the NDA. Ms.
Hoffman asked why are you guys not being able to have some of these conversations with them
without it. Mr. Standish stated he thinks the point she is maybe missing here is just because there
are conversations had outside of all of their conversations with people who did not sign NDAs,
which is perfectly fine. He stated that’s the department that they handle, drainage, those were not
what the NDA was designed or asked to be signed for. He stated it was for the stuff that maybe
came out in the paper that you read. He stated from his understanding and even talking to Attorney
Beaver, it doesn’t fall under their NDA. He stated when you want to start talking about what the
Times said and things like that, they can talk about that because it has been made public. He stated,
those tidbits, as they come out public, releases them from that obligation. He stated its like eating
at the table, all of it will come at due time. Ms. Hoffiman stated months later when there is no
public input for anything. Mr. Standish stated no that is not the case. Mr. Bontreger stated they
have a process. He stated the Planning Commission had their process and that is what they have
communicated. He stated they can say this because it is not disclosing anything, Mr. Standish made
the point. He stated they are willing to walk through with the company or any developer what the
legal process is. He stated if they start playing favorites, they start to veer into legal gray areas
where they can get sued because they are trying to pick and choose and giving different rules for
people to try to have to work through the process. He stated the process may screen it out and it
may not happen and that is fine. He stated they will abide by the process. He stated the initial
conversations sometimes do need to be held in confidence. He stated he is willing to sign it and if
you can’t trust him to be the person to sign that and have that confidential conversation then he
supposes he should not be in that position but hopefully there would be some level of trust when
vou elect somebody that they can handle those initial difficult conversations confidentially that
isn’t necessarily appropriate for public consumption at the beginning of a conversation. Mr. Hilton
stated to Mr. Bontreger’s point earlier, without having an opportunity to sit at the table, as much
displeasure as it took to sit at that table some days, they know he can get a little bit more brash
then he should, especially sitting across from these companies like that, but having the trust in
them to know that all three of the Commissioners collectively have the best interests of their



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
November 3, 2025
PAGE 115

MICHELLE HOFFMAN CONT’D: constituents in the back of their minds first and foremost. He
stated he really wants to relay that back to her and to anybody else who has that question, not one
of them are sitting at that table thinking about themselves. He stated he will die on that sword
today. He stated no matter what that conversation entails, no matter how much they do not want
to be sitting at that table, he 15 speaking for himself on that, because some of those conversations
make his blood pressure rise, they are constantly thinking about you guys first and foremost. He
stated she has talked to him and he has given her as much information as he can. He stated he
wants to make sure they all trust the fact that they are doing and listening and talking and having
these conversations with everyone in Jasper County. He stated nothing they do, no conversation
they have, is done based on what they feel personally. He stated they want to do this based on what
is best for our county. He stated being able to have those conversations, whatever that topic maybe,
as hard as it maybe that is why they do it. Mr. Bontreger stated part of what happens too is if they
are not willing to provide that safety of confidentiality then they all have a tendency to withhold
information that would be good to know at the beginning of a project. He stated she walked through
the whole CCS fiasco that they went through. He stated he believes if he wouldn’t have been
willing to have those confidential conversations with them one-on-one, they would not have been
as forthcoming with him at what their intentions were. He stated a lot of times they view us in the
rural communities as easy to roll over. He stated they are trying to demonstrate that is not the case,
they can negotiate and have conversations and be honest and then take it and as details come public
they are happy to talk about it, they are talking about it now. He stated he applauds her for bringing
the question up because this allows them to be able to address this topic in a way that a lot of
people, more than just them in a personal conversation, can hear his perspective and their opinions
on it. He stated he realizes he may not convince her otherwise that it was okay for them to sign
those but that is the reasoning and the logic behind his reasoning and why he is willing to do it. He
stated he realizes that may not be a satisfactory answer but that is his honest opinion and answer.
Ms. Hoffman stated we know that data centers want to build close to the power plants. She stated
she knows that they are having a water study done and are still waiting on that. She stated her
question is, are they going to sign NDAs with NIPSCO now on the data center that they want to
put in somewhere on their property that they will probably lease out, sell, who knows what. She
stated shouldn’t there be more transparency there, especially now that we know that data centers
are possibly going to want to come into the county. She stated some will be for it and some will
be against it but shouldn’t we have an understanding. Mr. Bontreger stated he thinks the Plan
Commission process 1s addressing that topic head-on and whether it gets zoned for them to be able
to do it or not is part of the process. He stated that is the public input. He stated so if that goes
through and it is deemed appropriate and NIPSCO can follow our rules, and if there is a data center,
then you figure out a way to make it work and if they don’t and it doesn’t work then you move on.
He stated there 15 more than one component to what they are hoping to do. He stated there is the
power generation, which we certainly need that and they have definitely told them that, which has
been public knowledge, that they are going to shut Schaefer down yet he just saw the Trump
administration wants to put $100 million into keeping the coal plants going so they might have
new information for them today that they might make a change there, he does not know. Ms.
Hoffman asked if they are ever going to bring down stacks 14 and 15 or are they going to leave
them up there permanently so they can start to crumble and fall. Mr. Bontreger stated they have
their own decommuissioning analysis that they have to determine if it’s worth the cost to bring them
down or to let them stand, that is part of their plans, that is not something that they have shared
with the Commissioners and it doesn’t really affect the overall campus out there, that is
infrastructure that has been there for 50 years. He stated all he can say is we are having ongoing
discussions to try to get, that if it does get through the process, they are trying to put the county in
the best position for whatever contingency we are faced with. He stated his concem is if we prove
ourselves to be untenable and uncooperative then the state legislature would be more than happy
to take away home rule and zoning and then we get to be unwilling participants and get nothing
out of the deal. Mr. Standish stated no matter whatever goes on out there, if anything ever goes on
out there, please trust in the fact that it is all going to go through the process whether that is a solar




REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

November 3, 2025
PAGE 116

MICHELLE HOFFMAN CONT’D: filed, a wind farm, potential data center, case center, whatever
it is. He stated the only thing right now they don’t have the control of that they are still trying to
figure out is carbon capturing, if that ever comes back to raise its head, that is coming out from the
state. Ms. Hoffman stated she is sure NIPSCO will be bringing that up next. Mr. Standish stated
the biggest part of their job and anybody that sits on a board is that they have to follow the process.
He stated the discussions that are being had give them, in his opinion, ammunition to prepare for
that process if they ever get to that point. He stated he knows all three of them have an extensive
list of things that they have questions about if it gets to that point in the process. He stated at this
point he is asking her to put a little trust in them until they prove that they do not deserve that trust.
He stated obviously when the time comes they will take questions and try to answer them and
maybe she will bring something up that they did not get on their three lists. He stated they are here
to represent the 33,000 people in Jasper County, not the three people sitting there.

EXTENSION OFFICE CARMEN FORTNEY: Ms. Fortney stated she wanted to remind them
about the annual meeting that is coming up on the 13™. She stated they are doing tacos and it has
not been determined yet if they are going to cater or if they are going to do some home cooking
but they will figure that out when they get the final numbers in. She stated thank you for approving
the contractual agreement and then if you have not RSVP’d and you can make 1t please let her
know as soon as possible.

There being no further business, Mr. Standish made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Mr. Hilton
seconded and the motion carried.

Rein Bontreger, President

Diana Boersma, Auditor of Jasper County

T

an Hilton, Vice President

'a
- __
Al T\Q.ﬁ&n’ép

Craig %ajndish, Member




